BATH ASTRONOMERS' CONSTITUTION

1 Name

The Society shall be named the Bath Astronomers.

2 Aims

The aims of the Society shall be to promote the education and enjoyment of space and astronomy in the local and wider community.

These aims shall be undertaken in partnership with other local bodies to maximise effectiveness and coverage and for mutual benefit. Specifically, the Society intends to work in cooperation with the Bath Preservation Trust and the Herschel Society on public stargazing engagements and bringing the works of Alexander, Caroline and William Herschel to life.

3 Powers

In furtherance of the aims but not otherwise the Society may:

- a) arrange public lectures on astronomy, public astronomical observing sessions, and educational events,
- b) raise funds and invite and receive contributions, provided that it shall not undertake any substantial permanent trading activities and shall conform to any relevant requirements of law,
- c) undertake, execute, manage or assist any charitable trusts which may lawfully be undertaken, executed, managed or assisted by the Society.
- d) collect and disseminate information in all matters affecting the said aims and exchange such information with other bodies having similar aims whether in this country or overseas,
- e) cause to be written and printed or otherwise reproduced and circulated, gratuitously or otherwise, such papers, books, periodicals, pamphlets or other documents as shall further the said aims,
- f) invest the moneys of the Society not immediately required for the said aims in or upon such investments, securities or property as may be thought fit, subject nevertheless to such conditions (if any) as may from the time being be imposed or required by law, and
- g) do all such other lawful things as are necessary for the achievement of the aims.

4 The Coordination Team

The affairs of the Society shall be conducted by a Coordination Team ("CoT"). The CoT shall comprise at least three members of the Society, and not more than eight members at any one time.

The CoT may co-opt other consenting members of the Society to serve on the CoT provided that the number of members does not exceed the limit above. Such co-option shall not extend beyond the next Annual General Meeting.

The CoT shall:

- a) see that the aims of the Society are carried out,
- b) arrange a programme of meetings throughout the year,
- c) make arrangements for observing,
- d) control Expenditure and Finance,
- e) meet at least once a quarter,
- f) be presided over by the Chair,
- g) keep an Inventory of Assets of the Society,
- h) arrange publicity relating to membership and events to help sustain the Society, and
- i) be responsible to and report to the Society at the Annual General Meeting.

The CoT shall determine the quorum necessary for the transaction of business at its meetings and may regulate its business as it sees fit. Decisions shall be taken via the voting of a quorate CoT. In the event of an equal number of votes cast in each direction then the Chair shall have the casting vote.

The business of the CoT shall be recorded and made available to members in a timely fashion.

No member of the CoT shall acquire any interest in property belonging to the Society, receive any remuneration from the Society, or be interested (otherwise than as a member of the CoT) in any contract entered into by the CoT. However, members of the CoT may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred on behalf of the Society.

5 CoT Officers

The Society may appoint any or all of the following Officers: a Chair, a Secretary, a Treasurer, a Membership Officer, an Events and Social Officer, an Observing Officer, an Equipment Officer, a Child Protection Responsible Officer, a Web and Social Media Officer, and Ordinary Officers. A member may hold one or more roles, and conversely a role's duties may be handled by more than one CoT member. An Officer must maintain their membership status as fully paid up or forfeit their CoT role immediately.

BATH ASTRONOMERS' CONSTITUTION

The Officers shall be elected by the Society's members at an Annual General Meeting. Incumbent Officers are eligible for re-election. In the event of an Officer resigning and leaving post prior to an Annual General Meeting, the quorate CoT may vote and appoint a member to deputise the role.

6 Trustees

For the purposes of the Charities Act, the Trustees of the Society shall comprise current CoT Officers and elected and co-opted CoT members.

7 Membership

Membership of the Society shall be open to all persons interested in astronomy and who have paid the annual subscription as set out in clause 8. There shall be six classes of member:

Young Person – Under the age of 18 years,

Student - In full-time education,

Adult - Aged 18 years or over,

Couple – Two adults residing at the same postal address,

Family - Adults and related young people residing at the same postal address, and

Honorary – Awarded for 1, 2, or 5 years by a majority of the CoT to a member who has made outstanding contributions to the Society and its Aims.

Visitors are welcome to Society regular meetings subject to a fee agreed at a General Meeting of the Society.

The CoT shall have the right to approve or reject applications for membership. Any member who acts in such a way as to contravene this Constitution, damage equipment, misappropriate Society funds or property, disrupt meetings, harass other members, or in any way acts irresponsibly, or brings the Society into disrepute with the public or its members, or acts in the opinion of the CoT, in any way outside of the spirit of the Society's aims, shall have their membership status considered by the CoT. The CoT have the power to terminate the membership of any member if deemed necessary. Such terminations will be by letter and a pro-rata refund of membership fees is to be made in such instances.

8 Subscription

The annual membership subscription to the Society shall be such amount as may be agreed at a General Meeting of the Society. Members may join at any time; subscriptions are due on the anniversary of their joining date. Subscriptions may be paid for one or more whole years.

Annual subscriptions as of November 2024:

Young Person No annual charge

 Student
 £10.00

 Adult
 £20.00

 Couple
 £25.00

 Family
 £25.00

Honorary No annual charge

9 Equality and Protections

The Society values diversity, recognising that different perspectives on ideas, opinions, histories, knowledge and culture are a source of strength to the community, and no discrimination based on, but not limited, to a person's age, disability, family circumstance, gender, political opinion, race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin, religion or belief, sexual orientation, socio-economic background, or other distinctions will be tolerated.

The CoT will ensure that the Society's Child Protection Statement is followed in all interactions with young people and appropriate controls put in place.

The CoT will ensure that all events are risk assessed (whether new or applicable prior generic assessment) and its mitigations or controls are in place or risks are accepted. The CoT will ensure adequate public liability insurance cover is in place.

The CoT will ensure that the general data protection regulations appropriate for an organisation of our size are adhered to.

The CoT will strive to ensure that property of the Society is kept secure, insured, and appropriately maintained.

10 <u>Annual General Meetings</u>

An Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Society shall be held at least once each calendar year (and not more than fifteen months after the previous AGM), at a time and place fixed by the CoT. The business of an AGM shall include the adoption of the Report and Accounts for the preceding year, and the election of the CoT. The Meeting is to be run by the Chair or CoT appointed deputy.

BATH ASTRONOMERS' CONSTITUTION

11 <u>Extraordinary General Meetings</u>

An Extraordinary General Meeting ("EGM") of the Society may be called by the CoT and must be called at the written request of 25% or more of the current membership.

12 Notice of General Meetings

All members must be given at least 28 days' notice of a General Meeting of the Society and such notice is to specify the business for which the meeting has been called. Any notice will be given by email and for those without correspondence email, by post to their last recorded address. No business transacted at a General Meeting shall be invalidated by reason only of the inadvertent omission to give notice to any member of the Society.

13 Procedure at General Meetings

No business may be transacted at a General Meeting unless notice has been given to members in accordance with the previous paragraph. However, the Chair of the Society shall have discretion to accept amendments prior to re-election to motions put to the Meeting if they consider that they do not amount to a substantive change to the notified business.

Resolutions shall be decided by a majority of members present and voting by a show of hands, or otherwise at the discretion of the Chair. If there is an equal number of votes cast in each direction, then the Chair shall have a second or casting vote.

The Chair may, and at the formal request of at least 25% of members must, put any motion to a postal ballot of all members.

14 Assets and Finance

All monies raised by or on behalf of the Society shall be applied to further the aims of the Society and for no other purposes provided that nothing herein contained shall prevent the repayment to officers, officials or members of expenditure properly incurred for the benefit of the Society.

The CoT shall have the power to invest or expend the funds of the Society in such manner as they shall consider most beneficial for the achievement of the aims of the Society.

A bank account shall be opened in the name of the Society with such bank as the CoT shall from time to time decide. The CoT shall authorise in writing the Officers of the Society to sign cheques on behalf of the Society. All cheques must be signed by not less than two of the authorised signatories and where possible shall normally be signed by the Chair and the Treasurer. Online banking shall be delegated to named primary account users assigned by the CoT to act on its behalf and within the constraints of the Constitution.

15 Accounts

Accounts shall be maintained of all income and expenditure of the Society. The accounts shall be presented at the Annual General Meeting and certified by a suitably qualified or experienced person appointed by the CoT.

16 Alteration of the Constitution

Subject to the following provisions of this clause, the Constitution may be altered by a resolution passed by more than 50% of the members present and voting at a General Meeting. The notice of the General Meeting must include notice of the resolution, setting out the terms of the alteration proposed. Amendments to clause 2, clause 3, clause 17 and this clause (16) shall not be effective until approval for the change received from the Charity Commission or other authority having charitable jurisdiction and no alteration shall be made which would have the effect of causing the Society to cease to be a charity at law.

17 Winding Up

The Society may be dissolved by a majority of members present and voting at a General Meeting.

If dissolved, the Society's assets shall be transferred to a charity having similar aims as agreed by the CoT.

This revised Constitution was adopted at the General Meeting of the Society on Wednesday 27th November 2024.

Signed:		
Name:	Name:	
Chair	Secretary	

Notes: The Bath Astronomers were constituted as a Society on 27th November 2019. Bath Astronomical Society, constituted in March 1976, had similar aims but was wound up prior to 2019.